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In submitting the present work to the
notice of the public, the Author tenders his warmest thanks to
his numerous subscribers, and his apology for the delay which has
unavoidably taken place in its publication.

He would, also, take the present opportunity of claiming the
usual indulgence for any little shortcomings that may be apparent
in the course of its perusal. As its title imports, it is simply
a record of the incidents of travel, during a period of
twenty-three years, over a great portion of Australasia.
Statistics and dry detail have been avoided, as being more
peculiarly the task of the historian. Should it, however, afford
a few hours' amusement to the reader, the Author's object will
have been amply attained.

DANIEL BUNCE.
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TASMANIA.

In commencing the first chapter of the
"Reminiscences", we shall abandon the old and hackneyed style
universally adopted by all previous writers on the colony, who
usually commence with, "Tasmania is an island;" or, "This
interesting island lies between the parallels of 41 degrees 20
minutes and 43 degrees 40 minutes south, and between the
meridians 144 degrees 40 minutes, and 148 degrees 20 minutes, of
east longitude." Of course, Tasmania is an island, &c. To
tell all the world this is to tell all the world what all the
world already knows, or, at least, ought to know; and, as we have
no desire to compete for the prize offered by some eccentrically
disposed individual for those who could furnish the oldest
possible news, we shall at once commence with our own
experiences.

It will be sufficient for our purpose, then—and, in
adopting this course, we are induced to believe that we shall the
more readily fall in with the views of our readers—if we
confine ourselves to the incidents of travel which have fallen
under our own especial observation, during a period of
twenty-three years. During the whole of this time, we have been
actively employed in developing the resources of a country more
peculiar in all its characteristics, both as regards its animal
and vegetable productions, than any other country on the face of
the globe—to furnish a narrative as novel as we anticipate
it will prove interesting to our readers.

We left Gravesend on the seventeenth day of October, in the
year one thousand eight hundred and thirty-two, in the good ship
"Ellen", of London, George Dixon, master, and reached Tasmania on
the second day of March, in the year following—that is, 2nd
March, 1833; when we cast anchor in the beautiful estuary of the
Derwent.

From the length of time occupied in this passage, our readers
will observe that, as we touched at no port from the commencement
to its termination, we are writing of times anterior to the
clipper ships and circle sailing, and some time prior to the tide
of emigration having set in towards the Australian shores. Among
the passengers were Mr. Eyre, since celebrated for his
exploratory exertions in South Western Australia; and Mr. Thomas
Wilkinson, late M.L.C. for the Portland Bay district, but whose
name, we anticipate, will be more permanently associated with the
annals of that and the adjoining districts as having been the
projector, proprietor, editor, printer, and pressman of the
Portland Bay Guardian.

Having landed our readers on the Tasmanian shores, we must beg
to be permitted to retrograde, for the purpose of furnishing
records of a series of important and interesting events which
occurred previously to our arrival; and, although we wish not to
be tedious, we at the same time feel that we should neither be
doing justice to our readers, to the colony, or to ourselves, if
we omitted. In doing this we shall, of course, have to be
dependent upon other testimony than our own; still, we can safely
aver that the authority will be taken from a gentleman long
deceased, who, while living, was an intimate and personal friend
of Colonel Arthur, Governor of the Colony, as well as his
successor, Sir John Franklin, and whose exertions and
lucubrations, during his residence in the colony and prior to his
melancholy death, will be long remembered. The gentleman was Dr.
James Ross; our next chapter will, consequently, have rather the
character of a compilation of events. This is, however,
necessary, from the reasons already expressed.
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A.D. 1646, December 1st.—Abel
Jansen Tasman discovered Van Diemen's Land, and anchored the
ships "Hemskirk" and "Zeehan" in a bay to the south of Maria
Island, which he named Frederick Hendrick's Bay, and called this
country Van Diemen's Land, in honor of Athony Van Diemen, at that
time Governor-General of the Dutch possessions in the East
Indies, residing at Batavia, from which place Tasman sailed. He
also named Maria Island in memory of this Governor's daughter, to
whom he was attached. Storm Bay was so named by Tasman from his
having been nearly lost in a storm, a few days previous to his
anchoring off Maria Island.

1773, March 9th.—Captain Furneaux was the first
Englishman who visited Van Diemen's Land. He accompanied Captain
Cook in his second voyage round the world, from whom he was
separated, in a very thick fog, off St. Paul's Island, on the 4th
February.

Captain Cook, in the "Resolution", bore up for New Zealand,
and Captain Furneaux, in the "Adventure", anchored in the Bay now
so named, on the eastern side of Bruné Island, which he then
considered to be the main land, on the 11th of March. After
sailing along the eastern coast to 33 degrees south, and
discovering a cluster of islands in Bass's Straits, which now
bear his name, he left the coast for New Zealand, when he
rejoined his commander.

1777, January 25th.—Captain Cook, in his third voyage,
anchored in Adventure Bay, and remained five days taking in wood
and water. On his departure, he left a couple of pigs on Bruné
Island, which the natives afterwards destroyed.

1792, April 20th.—Admiral Bruné D'Entrecasteaux, in the
"Research", accompanied by Captain Huon Kermander, in the
"Esperance", on an expedition in search of La Perouse, anchored
in Recherche Bay. They remained upwards of a month exploring the
south-eastern coast of the island. They discovered that Bruné
Island was separated from the main land by a channel, both of
which were named after the Captain of the "Research".

1793, January.—The same ships again arrived from the
south coast of New Holland and Amboyna, and anchored in Recherche
Bay. They remained some time exploring the country; and, on the
14th of February, they sailed to explore D'Entrecasteaux Channel.
On the 23rd of February, both vessels anchored in Adventure Bay,
where they remained five days before sailing for the South Sea
Islands. The admiral landed a male and female goat on Bruné
Island; and also, near a remarkable tree, he deposited a bottle,
containing an account of his voyage as far as it had gone. This
bottle was afterwards found by Captain Bunker, of the ship
"Venus", in 1809. Captain Bunker, not well understanding French,
and seeing the name of La Perouse, erroneously concluded that
these papers had been deposited there by that unfortunate
nobleman. In the same year, on the 7th of May, Captain Huon died
of a fever, and was interred in the island of Pudonza, near New
Caledonia. He was succeeded in command of the "Esperance" by M.
D. Auribeau, who also died at Batavia, on the 22nd of August,
1794. Admiral D'Entrecasteaux died of cholic, near the coast of
La Louisiade, on the 21st of June, 1793. The two ships were taken
by the Dutch, and the officers and men were placed under arrest
at Samarang, in the island of Java, on the 16th of February,
1796. They were kept in confinement for upwards of a year, and
many of them died. The few who remained alive took their passage
in a small vessel for the Isle of France, and ultimately reached
Paris on the 12th of March, 1796. The only officer of note,
belonging to the voyage, who arrived home after an absence of
four years, five months, and eleven days, was Labillardiere, the
naturalist of the expedition. He afterwards published an
interesting account of this voyage, in two volumes, in which is
contained the best history of the animals and vegetables of Van
Diemen's Land that has hitherto appeared.

1798, February.—Dr. Bass discovered that Van Diemen's
Land was an island, being separated from New Holland by the
strait which bears his name.

1803, October 9th.—The ships "Calcutta" and "Ocean",
with Colonel Collins on board, arrived at Port Phillip, on the
north side of Bass's Strait, with officers and provisions, in
order to form a settlement. This position was, however,
necessarily abandoned for want of water; and, in consequence of
instructions from Governor King, at Sydney, it was determined to
transfer the expedition to Van Diemen's Land.

1803, August.—Lieutenant Bowen, in the brig Lord Nelson,
with a party from Port Jackson, was the first to take possession
of the island at Risdon, or Best Down, on the east bank of the
Derwent.

1804, February 19th.—Colonel Collins, the first
Lieutenant-Governor of Van Diemen's Land, in the ship Ocean, from
Port Phillip, arrived in the Derwent, and soon after removed the
seat of Government from Risdon to where it now is, on the
opposite side of the river. He named it Hobart Town, after Lord
Hobart.

The following are the names of the officers of the Civil
Establishment originally sent out to form the settlement at Port
Phillip:—

Lieutenant-Colonel Collins, of H.M. Royal Marine Forces,
Lieutenant-Governor.

The Rev. Robert Knopwood, A.M., Chaplain.

Benjamin Barbauld, Esq., was appointed Deputy Judge Advocate,
by the Home Government, but did not arrive.

Mr. W.J. Anson, Surgeon; Mr. Matthew Bowden,
Assistant-Surgeon; and Mr. William Hopley, Second
Assistant-Surgeon. All these three gentlemen are since dead, and
their remains are interred beside each other in the churchyard in
Hobart Town.

Leonard Fosbrook, Deputy Assistant Commissary General. This
gentleman did not, however, long remain in the colony, but
returned home to England.

George P. Harris, Esq., Surveyor, dead.

Adolorius W. Henry Humphrey, Esq., Mineralogist, also
dead.

Mr. Thomas Clark and Mr. William Patterson were the two
Superintendents of Convicts, at a salary of £50 a-year each; both
dead.

Mr. John Ingle was also appointed to act in the same capacity
at Port Phillip, at the same salary. He is now residing in
England on a handsome property, which he realised in the early
period of the colony.

The officers who were on board H.M. ship "Calcutta", on her
voyage to Port Phillip were, Daniel Woodriff, Esq., Post Captain,
R.N.; Mr. James Tuckey, first Lieutenant; Mr. Richard Donovan,
second do.; Mr. Nicholas Paleshall, third do.; Mr. W. Doers,
fourth do.; and Mr. John Houston, fifth do.; Mr. Richard Wright,
Master; E.T. Bromley, Esq., Surgeon; and Mr. Edward White,
Purser. And of the Royal Marine Forces, Mr. Charles Menzies,
first Lieutenant, and Mr. James M'Culloch, second do.; as also
Colonel Collins, who arrived at Van Diemen's Land, with whom were
Mr. W. Hadden, first Lieutenant, Mr. J. M. Johnson, second do.,
and Mr. Edward Lord, third do. Three Sergeants, and three
Corporals, one Drummer, one Fifer, and thirty-nine Privates.

1804, September 25th.—The limits of the counties of
Northumberland, of Cornwall, and of Buckinghamshire, in Van
Diemen's Land, were defined by a Government order published in
the Sydney Gazette.

1804, October 15th.—Colonel Patterson sailed from Sydney
to form a new settlement, and took the command at Port Dalrymple.
On his arrival he pitched his tent at a plain on the west bank of
the Tamar, near its entrance, which he named York Town; since
abandoned.

1807.—During this and the previous year there was a
great dearth of provisions in this colony. Kangaroo flesh was
sold for one shilling and sixpence a pound, and that species of
sea weed, or salsolaceous plant (atriplex halimus), called
Botany Bay Greens, being the chief support of the
inhabitants.

1810, March 24th.—Lieutenant-Governor Collins died at
Hobart Town, and was buried under the altar of the church. From
this period until 1813, the Government of the colony was
administered in succession by Lieutenant Edward Lord; Captain
Murray, of the 73rd Regiment; and Lieutenant-Colonel Geils, of
the same Regiment.

1811, November 23rd.—Governor and Mrs. Macquarie, in the
"Lady Nelson", arrived at Hobart Town, on a visit from New South
Wales.

1813, February 4th.—The second Lieutenant-Governor of
this island. Colonel Thomas Davey, arrived and took command.

1813, June 19th.—The ports of Van Diemen's Land were
first opened for commerce, and put on the same footing as those
in New South Wales; merchant ships having, until that time, been
prohibited from entering the harbors under severe penalties.

1817, April 2nd.—Colonel Sorell, the third
Lieutenant-Governor of Van Diemen's Land, succeeded Colonel
Davey. The latter gentleman, after remaining some years in the
colony, returned to England, where he died. Colonel Sorell was
ably assisted by Major, now Colonel Bell, C.B., of the 48th
Regiment. About the year 1819, the character of Van Diemen's Land
began to be known in England, and the emigration of free settlers
first commenced to any extent. The practice of bushranging, or
the absconding of prisoners into the woods, who subsisted by
plunder on the settlers in the interior, was, however, a serious
drawback to the progress of the colony during this
administration. Roads began to be cut through the woods, across
the island to Port Dalrymple, and the other chief settlements in
the interior. Previous to Colonel Sorell's arrival, there were no
regular roads.

1824, May 14th.—Colonel Arthur, the fourth
Lieutenant-Governor of Van Diemen's Land, arrived, and succeeded
Colonel Sorell. The horrid practice of bushranging continued to
rage until 1826, when it was completely annihilated by the
spirited exertions of the Government. Emigration, not only of
individuals, but of considerable companies, took place from
England, and the cultivation of the island has continued to
prosper.

1825, May 18th.—His Majesty appointed the Rev. Thomas
Heber Scott to be the first Archdeacon of New South Wales and Van
Diemen's Land. The penal settlement, afterwards called
Darlington, at Maria Island, was established this year. The Van
Diemen's Land Company's establishments at Circular Head, were
commenced about this time.

1825, November 24th.—Lieutenant-General Ralph Darling
arrived at Hobart Town with a despatch, dated Carlton House, June
14th, proclaiming Van Diemen's Land to be independent of the
Government of New South Wales.

1827.—The colony was divided into nine police districts,
and a magistrate appointed over each, with adequate salaries; in
place of every magistrate in the colony, as before that time,
having a salary of eighty pounds a-year, whether he acted or
not.

1830, April 16th.—Archdeacon Broughton, the second
Archdeacon of New South Wales and Van Diemen's Land, delivered
his first charge in St. David's Church. October.—A
steam-engine was first introduced into the colony, and
successfully set a-going as a flour-mill, on the wharf, by Mr.
John Walker. November.—White runaway convicts found among
the blacks in the woods, leading and directing them to commit
outrages on the white population.

Having now furnished what we consider to be an ample
chronological view of colonial events up to this period, and
which was absolutely necessary in carrying out our Tasmania
history, we will, with the reader's permission, commence the next
chapter with our own experiences.
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On landing, our first step was to
produce our credentials, or letters of introduction, among
others, to Captain John Montague, the Colonial Secretary;
Governor Arthur; and one to a Wm. Cleavy Browne, Esq., who had
just commenced a large and extensive timber and saw mill, at the
foot of Mount Wellington, called Sassafraz Valley. This gentleman
kindly furnished me with a letter to his overseer. Thus provided,
we were enabled to examine the botanically interesting features
of Mount Wellington. We were accompanied with one or two of our
fellow-passengers, who, being like myself, new chums, were
desirous of seeing something of the country. Our objects in the
journey were, however, different: mine being to obtain specimens
and seed of the flora; and theirs to shoot

"That emblem of Australia,

Genus macropus, class mammalia"—

colonially speaking, "Kangaroos flying".

To reach Mr. Browne's establishment, we passed through
Providence Valley, where Mr. Shoebridge had a healthy young hop
plantation, to Kangaroo bottom; and thence to Sassafraz Valley,
having on our right hand the New Town rivulet, whose banks were
lined with shrubs and plants of surpassing luxuriance. The most
conspicuous was the sassafraz tree, of a tall pyramidal growth,
and whose leaves emitted a most agreeable aromatic odour on the
crushing the pustules of volatile oil with which they were
surcharged. We observed that, in many cases, large flakes of bark
had been stripped from the trunks of the largest trees. On
inquiry, we discovered that the inhabitants were in the habit of
thus collecting and boiling the bark, and using the decoction as
an antiscorbutic, as a substitute for the sarsaparilla. This
beautiful tree, Cryptocarya glaucescens belongs to the
class Enneandria; order, Monogynnia, of Linnæus;
and Lauracea, of Jussieu, Dodonea, Decaspora, Pimeliâ,
Cyathodes, Prostanthera, Lomatia, Indigofera, Banksia, Correa,
Pomaderris, Sida, Pittosporum, Phebalium, Ozothamnus,
Leptospermum were the leading genera or family of the shrubs
which fringed the banks and dipped their lower branches in the
pure fast-running stream of the rivulet. In many cases, there
were several species of the genera named, but which we need not
recapitulate, as our readers can have access to the "Botany",
which accompanies the "History", and will be published in a
separate form. On the dry barren hills over which we had to
travel, the trees were principally gum, or several species of the
eucalyptus; but these trees, in their growth, formed a
remarkable contrast to the sassafraz and other trees, growing in
the immediate neighbourhood of the rivulet. The appearance of the
former was rather that of a series of large inanimate trunks,
around which were clinging that dainty plant, or ivy green, of
Charles Dickens. This was found to be owing to the periodical
bush fires, which prevented a free growth of the tree; and the
current of the sap being thus checked, produce a numerous progeny
of small branches, which, being attached to the butts and stems
of the tree, present a most unusual and singular appearance.
Common also to the poor, rocky patches of soil, was a singularly
beautiful and interesting race of dwarf shrubs, annuals, and
herbaceous plants: Daviesia latifolia (native hop),
Hibbertia, Pimelia, Hypoxis, Goodinovia, Xyrus, Lobelia.
This little, beautifully cerulian blue, flowering annual, has the
singular property of dying gradually from the roots upwards; and,
although absolutely dead below, the upper part of the plant is in
full bloom and healthy. Cynoglossum, Dillwynnia, Stylidium,
Pultnea, Stackhousiâ, Anthobulus, Leucopogon, Diannella,
Disandriâ, with Pterostylus, Acianthus, and sundry
other of the terrestrial Orchidacæ.

During the time I was examining and putting by some of the
most interesting specimens of the plants named into my portfolio,
one of my companions had selected a small hillock of dry soil,
intending to rest himself in the interim. He had scarcely seated
himself, when he felt a numbing sensation; and, on rising, it was
discovered that he had mistaken his position, having selected and
besieged the dormitory of a nest of old soldier ants, and was
bitten by one of these pugnacious insects, in return for his
temerity. On reaching Sassafraz Valley, we were kindly received
by Mr. Browne's overseer; and every preparation was made for a
nocturnal excursion, in which they anticipated some little
amusement in opossum shooting, and killing the devil, as an
animal peculiar to this island was colonially termed, but
scientifically known as a species of Dasyuris. One of
these animals we subsequently saw at the Government Gardens, near
the banks of the Derwent. It had been taken in a trap, by one of
Mr. Davidson's, the superintendent's, men. This animal was
confined in an iron cage, and fed with a stable fork, as it was
unsafe to approach it. Although many attempts had been made to
tame it during the course of eleven months, they did not succeed;
and it was afterwards sent home, under the care of Captain
Riddell, of the "Duckenfield", as a present to the Surrey
Zoological Gardens, where it lived for many years, and may
perhaps be still alive. The devil is carnivorous, and its habits
otherwise resemble the English badger. Browne's huts were
admirably situated for the kind of sport that my friends
anticipated. A few hours after moon-rise, they sallied forth,
with deadly intent, and on "evil purpose" bent against the poor
harmless opossums and other game; one pouch bearing brute would
doubtless have missed the number of his mess but for the kind
interference of one of the feathered race; for, just as our
sportsman, fresh from the legal precincts of Grey's Inn Square,
was taking a probably deadly aim, the solitary and melancholy
note of "More pork! more pork!" from the Cyclopean or Australian
owl, interposed most opportunely in warding off the shot, as,
while Mr. S. lowered his gun, and made nervous enquiries as to
the cause of the sounds, the opossum disappeared into some hollow
part of the gum-tree, and was lost sight of. Although our
companions brought back nothing as the result of their
night's exertions, one of our dogs had made a dead set at
something, at which he continued barking. Our disappointed
sportsman made a grab at what he considered to be a prostrate
opossum; but quickly withdrew his hands, at finding that his
digits had alighted upon nothing less than the "the quills upon a
fretful porcupine." (Echidna Australis.) At this
additional dilemma to the ant-hill, and the loss of the opossum,
he appeared to entertain but an indifferent opinion as regarded
the colonial game. One of Mr. Browne's men, who accompanied us
(after a manner peculiar to himself), succeeded in capturing and
taking back with him the porcupine, which, on again reaching the
huts, was very nicely roasted or baked in a coating of mud, and,
when cooked in this manner, was most delicious, with the addition
of green peas, the produce of the gardens at Sassafraz
Valley.

On the following morning, we made a clear start for the top of
Mount Wellington, to reach the summit of which we had to
accomplish an elevation of four thousand feet. For the first half
mile, the ascent was difficult, and rendered it necessary to hang
on (to use a nautical expression) by the eyelids, when we reached
a flat open spot of moist rich alluvial soil, rich in many plants
not seen at the foot of the Mount. Gaultheria hispida
(wax-cluster)—this plant was laden with its beautiful
clusters of pure white semi-transparent wax-like berries.

Euphrazia, Billarderia scandens, with its perpetually
covered masses of blue spindle-shaped fruit or berries, was
hanging in festoons around the branches of the neighbouring
shrubs, which rendered it at times difficult to determine the
character of plant to which it was attached. This beautiful
climber is easily cultivated. The blueish purple berries hang in
elegant festoons for several months during the latter part of the
season; while, during the earlier months, its pretty cylindrical
blossoms make it a desirable acquisition as a climber about a
verandah, or wall of a house. During the course of our ascent
towards the top of the mountain, we observed a marked difference
in the character of the vegetable features; and in the middle
regions, the plants totally differed from those at the base, and
the vegetation which clothed the top-summit. Among the broken
declivities, commencing at about 1500 feet to that of 3000 feet,
where we met with running waters, its sure accompaniment was the
smaller tree fern, Cibotium, Billarderia, mixed with many
plants of the larger arborescent fern, Alsophilla
Australis, from alsos and phileo, because it
delights in groves. The latter plant had stems from twenty to
thirty feet high, clear and straight, from the top of which
issued a circular series of fern-like foliage, giving to the
landscape a somewhat tropical appearance. Telopia
Tasmaniana, Tasmanian warratah, with gorgeously showy crimson
flowers and foliage, resembling the rhododendron. The name of the
genus is from telopos, seen at a distance, as the
brilliancy and quantity of the blossoms makes it an object
discernable from a distance in the bush. With much difficulty we
reached the summit, where my legal companion anticipated a
release from the annoyance of leeches, which had attacked and
annoyed him considerably during our passage through the swampy
and dank atmosphere of the tree-fern locality.

On arriving at the top of the mount, we found ourselves on an
extensive table-land, with nothing but a stunted vegetation and a
continued interruption of pools of water, abounding in aquatic
plants. The. general surface was covered with a great variety of
the yellow flowering Composite order of plants; and a new
species of Craspedia had, but a short time previously,
been taken from hence, and forwarded for the determination of Sir
William Jackson Hooker, of Kew Gardens. To this species he gave
the specific name of Grandiflora, Bellendina, mountain
rocket; Leptospermum prostrata, a prostrate species of
tea-tree. This procumbent character appeared, however, to be
rather the consequence of the continued blowing of strong winds,
than from a natural growth. Among the Alpine pastures were
Bellis, Lycopodium (club-moss), Asplenium assimile
(maiden hair-fern), Asplenium alcicorne (hartshorn leaved)
asplenium, Nastirtium, Sempinnatifidum, Cardamine (smell
mock), Galium, Stenanthera, Xerotes longifolia, Xiphopteris
heterophylla (various-leaved fern), Viola, Veronica
(two pretty species of speedwell), Euphrazia alpina (a
pretty, small-growing annual), Isolepis, and many others
of the rush tribe; Fimbristylus, and many species of the
sedgy plants. From the top, an extensive view was obtained of the
harbor, with the shipping, and, indeed, a bird's eye view of the
surrounding country. On travelling over the top, in the direction
of the head of the Huon river, we passed two remarkable-looking
boulders of rock, of considerable elevation. On the top of them
rested another stone, of magnificent proportions; thus forming a
kind of Druidical archway. Shortly after passing this remarkable
object, we commenced a sort of leap-frog journey over three or
four miles of large disjointed granite boulders; and at an
unknown depth, we could hear the roaring of a mighty torrent of
waters immediately beneath us. I am altogether lame at
description, although anxious to describe scenes in nature
sublime and unusual as the present. It will be sufficient to say
that, for the distance named, we hopped, leaped, and jumped over
a continued series of gigantic pebbles, among which was running a
large and boiling stream of water, occasioned by the melting of
snows, and which we found, on descending the Browne's river side
of the mountain, formed into one continuous stream, called the
Huon river. About two miles before reaching the head of this
river, we subsequently discovered that another branch of these
waters formed the source of Browne's river. On reaching the Huon
river, we camped for the night, amid dark Cryptogamic
vegetation, abounding in leeches, who paid their respects to our
unfortunate companion. Among the boulders of rock, we obtained
some interesting specimens of the Orchidia; three
different specimens of Dendrobium; lichens innumerable;
mosses and ferns abundantly attached to the face of the rocks. A
few months prior to our visit, a party of officers and gentlemen
belonging to the Steamer, 'Sea Horse' had taken an excursion to
Mount Wellington; and one of the junior officers was missed, and
has never since been heard of. At the time of their visit, these
rocks must have been clothed with their winter's covering of
snow; and, in all probability, the unfortunate youth may have
slipped through one of the many fissures of the rock, and into
the boiling torrent of waters below.

On commencing our next day's journey, we travelled for a short
distance, following the course of the Huon Kiver, being desirous
of seeing the tree, which has been long used, and still furnishes
the handsomest colonial material for veneering and other fine
cabinet-makers' work. This wood takes a fine polish, and is an
improvement on the bird's-eye maple. Its botanical name is
Dacrydium cupressimum, or cypress-like; its generic name
is derived from dakru, a tear, because the gummy
exudations drop like tears from the tips of the little branches.
We saw many samples of this beautifully pyramidal tree, which had
attained to the height of from between ninety-five to one hundred
feet, and thirty feet in circumference, extending its limbs to a
great distance, from which hang slender branchlets of the
liveliest green, from one to six feet long, giving the trees a
richness and elegance of appearance seldom equalled.

The rare plant, and only to be found in this particular
neighborhood, was here met with in all its grandeur. I mean the
Richia dracophylla, or tall grass tree. These trees have
many straggling branches, and numerous smaller heads at the
termination of each shoot. From the centres of these spring its
beautiful spikes of white flowers, with shades of white, pink and
green, upon the larger bracteæ, which are interspersed
among them in their early stages. It is decidedly the most
strikingly beautiful of all the Van Diemen's Land plants. Here
also the Betula antarctica, or Australian myrtle, as it is
most incorrectly called (it is not a Betula or birch; it
appears that the young shoots in their earlier stage had been
mistaken for the male blossom by the English botanists), is seen
to advantage. On our way back to Hobart Town, it was necessary to
abandon the Huon River, and as well as also to avoid having to
cross Browne's River, we had to hug that side of the mountain
which faced the town, an operation which my fat and uncomfortable
friend decided to be a difficult operation, and in his progress
downwards his movements were somewhat like those of an eel upon
ice. After falling down sundry declivities and through a flat
floor of tree-fern leaves, which he had mistaken for solid moss
and lichen-covered ground, we succeeded in reaching the upper
cascade, or springs would be the more proper appellation. It is
from this that the Hobart Town rivulet takes its rise, which,
after running through the property of Mr. Peter Degraves, and
acting as a motive power to his saw-mills and other machines,
quietly pursues its way past the Female Factory, and subsequently
through the town of Hobart, affording to the inhabitants a
plentiful supply of water. On reaching the upper cascade, we
camped among the butts of the Acacia affinis, or silver
wattle, which here attained a growth of great magnitude, and
rivalling in height and far exceeding in beauty the stupendous
gum-trees among which they grow. The butts of these trees, as
well as those of the gum, sassafraz, and myrtle-trees, bore
initials and names of former travellers who had succeeded in
reaching thus far in their ascent from Hobart Town. This was a
distinction which we considered due to our fellow-traveller, in
consequence of the injuries sustained in his journey on this
occasion; and he was induced to carve his own initials, J.B.S.,
on the butt of a stupendous silver wattle-tree. These initials
may still be remaining, although we regret to say that the
gentleman himself has passed into another and, we trust, a better
world. His death occurred about fifteen months since, in Hobart
Town. On our downward course, we passed through forests of the
black and silver wattle, around which was clinging the clematis;
Flamula, or white virgin's bower. Their rope-like stems
varying in size from that of a small quill to a man's arm and, in
the latter case, suspending its fine wide-spreading blossoms like
a white cloth on the top of the highest trees, with the rope, or
cable-like jointed stems, hanging down to, or rather growing out
of, the ground. In these situations, as it does not embrace the
tree, it would seem to have arisen and grown along with it. The
whirl-leaved or prickled accacia (A. verticillata), so
called from its sharp-pointed leaves standing out in whirls round
its stem like the spokes of a wheel, was common, wherever a
moist, sheltered situation was to be obtained. A.
lancifolia, and many other species of the entire or integral
leaved wattles, around which was clinging and hanging, in elegant
festoons, our old friend of the Browne's huts' side of the
mountain, the Billarderia scandens, Pimelia linifolia, or
flax-leaved pimelia. We afterwards found that, in the
course of preservation of these specimens, the leaves and stems
turned of a deep vitriol greenish blue. Veronica labiata V.
formosa, were also met with in the vicinity of the water. The
blue gum trees here are of a stupendous growth, attaining the
height of from 100 to 150 feet, with tall, straight, cylindrical
barrels, until within a few feet of the top.

This noble genus, on the whole, may be said to have taken
undisturbed possession of these Australian regions, clothing, as
it does, with its stupendous mantle, the surface of both Van
Diemen's Land and Australia. For the intermixture which the
lordly tribe occasionally permits, compared with its great
extent, is but small and partial. Where-ever you go, the
gum-tree, of one species or other presents itself. The wood of
all the species is highly useful for domestic and other purposes.
They are soft at first, and very easily cut down and sawed or
split up when green; but when thoroughly dry are as hard as oak.
They are all of a remarkably quick growth, and many of the
species attain an enormous growth, as previously described.
Eucalyptus globulus and some other species have file
remarkable property of casting off the grey or whitish bark in
longitudinal strips or ribands, which sometimes hang down from
the branches, and are shaken about with a singular effect, until
stripped off by the winds. The leaves are thus seen on both
sides, and present their edges to the body of the trunk or
branches to which they belong. The leaves grow in size with the
wood, being at first small and scarcely formed, with a reddish
yellow tinge, giving to the leaves of young trees, even in.
spring, the landscape tints of an English autumn. Several of the
species yield an exudation in the spring and summer months, which
coagulates, and drops from the leaves to the ground in small
irregular particles, often as large as an almond. They are sweet
and pleasant to the taste, and greedily devoured by the birds,
ants, and other animals, and used to be carefully picked up and
eaten by the aborigines. This is a sort of manna. The genus is
named from eu (well), and kalupto (to cover), from
the circumstance of the blossom being covered with a lid, which,
when the flower expands, falls off and discloses a five-celled
capsule, or seed-vessel, each filled with numerous small seeds.
The common name of gum-tree was given the genus from the large
quantities of strong astringent juice which the trees contained.
In cutting down a stringy-bark tree, for instance (E.
robusta), we often find large cavities between the annual
concentric circles of the trunk, filled with a most beautiful
red, or rich vermillion-colored liquid gum, which flows out as
soon as the saw has afforded it an opening. The gum yielded by
E. resinifera is considered by druggists as not in the
least inferior to the kind which the pterocarpus, or red
Saunder's wood of India produces.

In approaching through the wattle forest, again, towards
Degrave's establishment, we found that the long, hollow,
cylindrical barrels had been converted into water-pipes for the
use of the saw-mills, and through which ran a clear stream of
water. These pipes also afforded excellent substitutes for
bridges, where-ever it was necessary for a road to be made for
the timber-trucks, and thus prevented any injury to the
mill-stream or current, which supplied the mills. Clinging to the
butts of the large fern trees which formed avenues on either hand
of the water-courses, about the middle regions of the mount,
there were many small but interesting parasitical plants, as well
as Epiphites, Dendrobium, Lingueformi (tongue-leaved),
named from dendron, a tree, from its peculiar habit of
being mostly attached to trees, instead, as is the case with many
of the orchides, to moss-covered blocks of rocks; Asplenium
flabelliformis, Polypodium, Billardieria, climbing polypody;
P. rugulosum; rough ditto Ferns, with the
fructification in circular naked dots, which climb over rocks,
and the stems of trees, like ivy; Psilotum truncatum,
among the rocks; Pteris vespertilionis, a fern, with
leaves resembling the wings of a bat; P. esculenta, edible
rooted, and many others, belonging to the twenty-fourth class of
Linnæus. On our way to the town, we passed Degrave's saw mills;
and from thence, having the Hobart Town rivulet on our left-hand,
we passed the newly-built female factory, or penitentiary; Mr.
Hodgson's tannery; and the villa of Dynnyrne, the residence of
Mr. Robert Lathrop Murray; and parallel with Liverpool-street,
the flour-mills of Mr. Bruford. Although the rivulet or creek had
now commenced its course through the metropolis, its banks still
furnished an interesting and luxuriant growth of shrubs and other
plants, the principal being the Leptospermum lanigerum, or
hoary tea-tree, a genera of myrtaceous plants, of which
Van Diemen's Land numbers several species. L. lanigerum is
the one which, in the earlier period of the colony, was used as a
substitute for tea, and the long straight stems were used by the
aborigines for making their spears; hardening their points in the
fire, and sharpening them with a flint or shell.
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Hobart Town was so named by Colonel
Collins, the first Lieutenant-Governor, in compliment to Lord
Hobart, at that time Secretary of State for the Colonies.
Collins-street, named after Colonel Collins, was the first street
that was begun to be built.

Macquarie-street was named by Governor Macquarie after
himself; Elizabeth-street and Campbell-streets were named after
the maiden name of Mrs. Macquarie, daughter of General Campbell.
He also named Argyle-street, in memory of his native county of
that name, in Scotland. He named Murray-street after Captain
Murray, of the 73rd Regiment; and Harrington-street, after the
Earl of Harrington, who was Colonel of that Regiment; the name of
Barrack-street, as leading to the Military Barracks. Molle-street
commemorates the name of Colonel Molle, of the 48th; and
Antill-street beyond, that of Major Antill of the same Regiment,
and Brigadier-Major to Governor Macquarie. Davey-street was named
in memory of the late Colonel Davey, Lieutenant-Governor;
Liverpool-street, after the late Earl of Liverpool;
Bathurst-street, after the Earl of Bathurst, at that time
Secretary for the Colonies; Melville-street, after: Lord
Melville; Brisbane-street, after Governor Brisbane. St.
Patrick-street was so named at the request of the Rev. P.
Conolly, the Roman Catholic chapel being situated in it.
Warwick-street was named by Mr. Evans, late Surveyor-General, in
memory of Warwick Castle, in which that gentleman first saw the
light.
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